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| DESCRIPTION CT-100

.

CONDITION CHECK ONE CHECK ONE
_ EXCELLENT __DETERIORATED Y_UNALTERED Y _oRiGINAL SITE
Y coop —RUINS —_ALTERED ~MNOVED PATE— .
—FAIR —UNKEXPOSED

DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND OKIGINAL (IF KNOVWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

The Cheszpeeke Bay ebbs to within several hundred yerds of the east end of the
Cheszpeake Eeach Railway Station in Cheszpeake Beech. The old Cheszpeake Beach fruserznt
Perk edjoins the stztion to the scuth, vhile the Roc'l Reel Restzurznt and its
perking Tot zre loceted teo the north. Althcugh the f-usement Perk is sbandoned, the
restarvent and besch still provide the Testive, bustling activity that has alweys sur-
rounced the stztien.

The 93' long main Tecede of this freme building Teces north. The station is compris-
ed of two one-siory, hip-rocfed seciicns. The lowasr-rocfed eastern part was once an
open pessenger boerding area. Althcuch later ouners enclosed this area for storege,
the building retains its original lines and construction.

A porch sheliers the main terwminzl's three exposed sides. The hipped roof
fleres out to cover ithis porch. Chanfered brezces, rather than posts, support the
roof. A scuere, two-story tover proirudes from the north side. Its pyramid roof
rises above the main termingl ridge. A cross-geble lights the south side. Gerinzn
siding sheeihes the terminal. Compositicn shingles now cover the roof.

The tower's fenestraticn is icerntica) on both levels, ZA pzir of joined szsh
Lwinceus pierce the north sice. £ single window eppears on the east znd vest sides
of this projecting tower. AIl these windows hold 20/1 sash. To the eest of the
= Er @ iransomed door of six oddly spaced panels is centered between two 20/1 windows.
20/10 sash window is situzted vest of the tover.

The west end's only festure is & lerge door leacding to the mail and cargo room.
neils and stiles divide this door into four sections, esch containing narrow, bezded
izinscoting placed diagonally. A five-pane transcm tops the door.

On the south side one joined pair of 20/1 sash windows lights the tower, while
enother pair lights the first flcor below. A coor appears to either side of this
window., Each coor is ifocpped by & single-pane trearson. The west door contains Tour
vertically pleced rectengular pznels dividec by one horizontally plzced penel. The
trensom framing of the east coor includes an odd molding thet does not survive elsevhere
in the building.

The station's interior plen is very simple. A czrge &nd rail rcom runs the 25°
cdepth of the west end. -The remaining space to the east includes an L-shaped
passengpers' weaiting room wrzpped around an office in the southwest cormer. Surviving
interior finishes are simple. Narrow beaded-board wainscoting completes the waiting
room and oiTice.

The mail room's stud consiructicn was left uncovered, except for its ezst end,
which wes sheathed in simple lzppec weatherboards. A ledder-like stairwey leeds from
this room to the sttic, which was used for storace.

on's Trame employs circuler-szwn besams, often butted and toe-nziled

s. This is the first known deted use of wire nails in Calvert County.
The expcsed enc chamfTered freming of the porch roof is cone of coretive
tures of this building. The breces support & member resesbling
tec felse plete, which in turn supports the porch rzfiers.
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(DESCRIPTION, continued)

Locazted zbout 50' to the west of the station is a railroad car named Delores,
one of 32 passenger coaches purchased between June 1, 1899 and December 1, 1903
from the St. Charles Car Company of St. Charles, Missouri. The Calvert County
Historical Society moved the car from the Chesapeake Beach Railroad engine house
in Prince George's County to the Cheszpeake Beach Railroad station here in spring,

1979, :

The Delores was zbzndoned'in 1958, then stripped and cut in half in 1959. Little
original detail remzins, although the basic structure of the car is intact. Ames
Williems, in Otto Mears Goes fast: The Chesapeake Beach Railway (p. 40, 48)
describes the original cars as:

all of wooden construction of the suburban type with open platforms,
four-wheel trucks, toilets, baggage racks, kerosene lighting and

& steam heat.. The livery was Tuscan red with black trimmings and trucks.

The letter boards carved the words Chesapeake Beach in gold leaf. While
there is no record of the individual weight of each class of car, they
appear to have ranged between 52,450 and 58,500 pounds. The coaches
contained 40 razttan swing-over seats, the chair cars 72 wicker chairs and
the parlor cars 36 plush and 36 wicker seats each.
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SIGNIFICANCE

Erected in 1893 for the Washington and Chesapeake Railway Company, the station
at Chesapeake Beach derives significance from its association with the transportation
and related commercial history of Calvert County and a&s an excellent example of rural
railroad architecture. The station along with a railroad passenger car named "Delores"
are being preserved as a transportation and local history museum by the Calvert County

Historical Society.
HISTORY

The Washingion &nd Chzszpzeke Railway Company received a charter from the State of
Maryland on September 1, 1891 to operate a standard cuzge railroad, from the eastern
’hQUndary'of the District of Columbia through Prince Gsorge's, Anne Arundel, and Calvert
unties to the site of the present town of Chesapeake Beach. It ran from fall, 1898,
into spring 1935. tto Mears was the company president.

When a design was nesded for the stations, a Mr. McNeil, Mears' assistant, wrote to
C.S. Thompson, the bridge engineer for the Denver and Rio Grande Railroad requesting copies
of the depot plans at Fort Logan. The extent to which these plans wers emulated is
uncertain, but it is apparent that a "type" was employed, for the photographs of the
stations at Owings, Marlboro, and Yashington, Maryland reveal similarities among them.

The Chesapezke Beach terminal was built partially upon reclaimed marshland along the
south side of Fishing Cresk. In terms of materials and style it shares a great deal
with the other houses and structures closely connected with the original park and town.
It was 1ikely the work of a Mr. Winston, who was the contractor and builder of most of
these buildings.

The significance of the Chesapeake Beach Railway Company to the history of Calvert
County is simply that Tor many years neither Chzsapeake Beach nor the railroad would
have existed without the support of the other. While the resort at Chesapeake Beach wvas
the reason for the existence of the railroad, the raiiroad also provided the only relizble
freight and transportation line for the northern half of Calvert County. This station
and railroad car are nominated as the only visible remzins in Calvert County of this
important part of its history.

It is ironic that the railroad transported the first automobiles into Calvert County,
Aar it was the sutomobile which eventually caused the railroad to go out of business.
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Name of Property: Chesapeake Beach Railway Station
Location: 4155 Mears Avenue, Chesapeake Beach, Maryland

Property Description:

Qverview and Site

In April 2015, the Calvert County government identified ten properties that are in a floodplain, are likely
to be affected by a storm event that raises water up to five feet, or are along shorelines that are
susceptible to erosion and intrusion from rising water table. The Chesapeake Beach Railway Station is
one of these properties. The station sits on the high side of the floodplain, however, and there is no
evidence of flooding or environmental deterioration.

The one-and-a-half story, five bay wide by two bay deep, hip-roofed Chesapeake Beach Railway Station
is located in Chesapeake Beach, Calvert County, Maryland. Constructed as a railway station in 1898 to
serve the no longer extant Chesapeake Beach Railway, the building was rehabilitated in 1980 and
transformed into the Chesapeake Beach Railway Museum. It sits in the upper portions of the floodplain
overlooking Fishing Creek and the Chesapeake Bay. The building is in excellent condition; both the
exterior and interior retain a high degree of integrity of design, workmanship, and materials. An open-air
pavilion adjoins the building to the east and a former passenger railcar with little original fabric stands
behind the museum. Additionally, the shell of a railcar that serves as a canopy for a picnic area is located
to the south.

The property is located on a relatively flat, level site adjoined to the north and west by a parking lot that
borders Fishing Creek (Photograph 1). To the east is the Chesapeake Beach Resort and Spa (Photograph
2), which borders upon the Chesapeake Bay. The property is bounded to the south by a modern
residential townhouse development. The site is built on the high side of the floodplain, and upon dredge
spoils.

Exterior

The Chesapeake Beach Railway Station, constructed in 1898, is a one-and-a-half story buiiding, which is
five bays wide and two bays deep (Photographs 1 and 2). The main (western) block is capped with a
wood-shingled hipped roof with flared eaves and sits upon a poured concrete foundation. A square
tower with a wood-shingled pyramid roof projects from the north side of the roof and an off-center
brick chimney with a corbeled cap pierces the roofline east of the tower. The building is predominantly
clad with German siding with wainscoting present below the sill-level string course. The north, west, and
rear elevations are protected by the wide flared eaves of the roof, creating a full-length wood-shingle

Prepared by: C. Leggio, D. Litowitz, and S. Wieczorek, Date: July 15, 2015
Johnson Mirmiran and Thompson
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Name of Property: Chesapeake Beach Railway Station
Location: 4155 Mears Avenue, Chesapeake Beach, Maryland

wraparound porch that exhibits exposed rafters and is supported by timber brackets. Fenestration
consists of a mix of eighteen-over-one, twenty-over-two, and ten-over-ten double-hung wood sash
windows. The off-center front and rear entry door openings consist of five-paneled wood doors with
single rectangular lights. Both are capped by single-light rectangular transom windows.

At the fagade (north elevation) is a two-story projecting bay that is capped by a wood-shingle pyramid-
roofed tower. The tower is clad with octagonal wood shingles above the roofline and German siding
below.

A gabled dormer is located on the rear (south) elevation. The gable end is clad with octagonal wood
shingles and protected by overhanging projecting eaves with exposed rafters (Photograph 3). The
building’s mechanical equipment and a projecting utility chase are housed beneath the dormer.
Fenestration matches that of the front projecting bay and consists of paired eighteen-over-one double
hung wood sash windows.

The west elevation features a large wooden cargo door which once accessed the former mail room of
the station (Photograph 6). Rails and stiles divide the door into four unequal sections which are infilled
with diagonal beaded wainscot. A five-light transom caps the door. The gabled east elevation is
fenestrated by a pair of twenty-four-over-two double-hung wood sash windows. An informational
display is mounted on the east fagade between the two windows.

An open-air covered pavilion is appended to the east elevation of the railway station {Photograph 4).
The four bay by two bay structure has a wooden-decked patio. The hipped roof, which is covered with
wood shingles, features broad overhanging eaves supported by bracketed posts and exposed beams
{Photograph 5). A concrete wheelchair access ramp connects the deck with the parking lot below.

Interior

The interior of the railway station is divided into three main rooms arranged in an east and west block
on the first floor. The “L-shaped” former main passenger waiting room and an inset ticketing office are
located on the east (Photographs 7 to 12). The rooms in the east block are finished with beaded
wainscoting below a chair rail. Windows and doors have molded wood surrounds. A simple base
molding encircles the room and the floor consists of thin oak planks.

Prepared by: C. Leggio, D. Litowitz, and S. Wieczorek, Date: July 15, 2015
Johnson Mirmiran and Thompson
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Name of Property: Chesapeake Beach Railway Station
Location: 4155 Mears Avenue, Chesapeake Beach, Maryland

The western block is occupied solely by the former mail/storage room (Photographs 13 to 15). A floor-
to-ceiling beaded wainscot partition wall forms the eastern end of the room. A single-leaf paneled wood
door on this wall allows access to the stairwell to the second floor. The interior of the mail/storage room
is clad in horizontal barn-board face-nailed to the interior of the walls. The ceiling joists are exposed,
revealing the second floor flooring above. With the exception of a decorative molding on the southern
wainscoted partition wall, trim moldings in this space are simple and lack decoration.

Dolores
A former railway passenger car, locally known as “Dolores,” is situated behind the station (Photograph

16). According to the National Register nomination form for the property, the car was abandoned in
1958 and cut in half. Few of its original elements remain intact. A second shell of a railroad car is also
present behind the station, which serves as a canopy covering picnic tables (Photographs 17 and 18).

Prepared by: C. Leggio, D. Litowitz, and S. Wieczorek, Date: July 15, 2015
Johnson Mirmiran and Thompson
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Location: 4155 Mears Avenue, Chesapeake Beach, Maryland

Inventory No. CT-100

CT-100 - Chesapeake Beach Railway Station - Photo Log
Prints created using Epson DuraBrite Ultra Inks and Epson Premium Glossy Photo Paper
Data included on Verbatim® UltraLife™ Archival Grade DVD-R with Proprietary AZO recording dye

Image | Image File Name Image Description

No.

1 CT-100_2015-5-26_01 | View of the fagade (north elevation), looking southwest.

2 | CT-100_2015-5-26_02 | View of the fagade (north elevation), looking southeast.

3 CT-100_2015-5-26_03 | View of the rear (south) elevation, looking northwest.

4 CT-100_2015-5-26_04 | View of the covered deck, looking southwest.

5 CT-100_2015-5-26_05 | View of the interior of the covered deck, looking west.

6 CT-100_2015-5-26_06 | View of the west elevation, looking east.

7 CT-100_2015-5-26_07 | Interior view of the northern portion of the main room, looking west.
8 CT-100_2015-5-26_08 | Interior view of the northern portion of the main room, looking east.
9 CT-100_2015-5-26_09 | Interior view of the southern portion of the main room, looking east.
10 CT-100_2015-5-26_10 | Interior view of the former ticketing office, looking south.

11 CT-100_2015-5-26_11 | Interior view of the southern portion of the main room, looking west.
12 CT-100_2015-5-26_12 | Interior view of the main room, looking northwest.

13 CT-100_2015-5-26_13 | Interior view of the former mail/storage room, looking east.

14 CT-100_2015-5-26_14 | Interior view of the former mail/storage room, looking south.

15 CT-100_2015-5-26_15 | Interior view of the mail/storage room, looking northwest.

16 CT-100_2015-5-26_16 | View of the passenger car, “Dolores,” looking east.

17 CT-100_2015-5-26_17 | View of the passenger car canopy, looking west.

18 CT-100_2015-5-26_18 | View of the passenger car canopy, looking north.
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Inventory No. CT-100

Floorplan and Interior Photo Key
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DESCRIPTION
CONDITION CHECK ONE CHECK ONE
__EXCELLENT __DETERIORATED XUNALTERED XORIGINAL SITE
X.GOOD __RUINS __ALTERED __MOVED DATE
—FAIR ' - _UNEXPOSED

DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

The Chesapeake Bay ebbs to within several hundred yards of the Chesapeake Beach
Railroad Station's east end. The old Chesapeake Beach Amusement Park adjoins the
Station to the south, while the Rod *N Reel Restaurant and its parking lot are lo-
cated to the north., Although the Amusement Park lies abandoned, the restaurant and
beach still(provide}the festive, bustling activity that has always surrounded the
Station. we

The 93! long main facade of this frame building faces north. The Station
comprises two one-story hip-roofed sections. The lower-roofed eastern part was
once an open passenger boarding area, Although later owners enclosed this area for
storage, the building retains its original lines and construction.

A porch shelters the main terminal's three exposed sides. The Station's hip
roof flares out to cover this porch. Chamfered braces, rather than posts, support
the roof. A square, two-story towerprotrudes from the north side. Its pyramid
rpof rises above the main terminal ridge. A cross-gable lights the south side.

German® siding sheathes the terminal. Composition shingles now cover the roof.

The tower'!s fenestration is identical on both levels. A pair of joined sash
windows pierces the north side. A single window appears on either the east and
west sides of this projecting tower. All these windows hold 20/1 sash. To the
east of the tower a transomed door comprising six oddly-spaced panels is centered
between two 20/1 windows. A 10/10 sash window is situated west of the tower.

The west end's only feature is a large door leading to the mail and cargo
room. Rails and stiles divide this door into four sections, each containing narrow,
beaded wainscoting placed diagonally. A five-pane transon tops the door.

On the south side one joined pair of 20/1 sash windows lights the tower, while
another pair lights the first floor below., A door appears to either side of this
window. Each door is topped by a single-pane transon. The west door contains four
vertically-placed rectangular panels divided by one horizontally placed panel. The
east door's transom framing includes an odd molding that does not survive elsewhere
in the building.

The Station's interior plan is very simple. A cargo and mail room runs the 25!
depth of the west end. The remaining space to the east includes an L-shaped passengers!.
waiting room wrapped around an office in the southwest corner. Surviving interior
finishes are simple. Narrow beaded-board wainscoting completes the waiting room and
office.

The mail room's stud construction was left uncovered, except for its east end,
which was sheathed in simple lapped weatherboards. A ladder-like stairway leads from
this room to the attic, which was used for storage.

The Station's frame employed circular-sawn beams, often butted and toe-nailed
with wire nails, This is the first known dated use of wire nails in Calvert County.

The porch roof's exposed and chamfered framing is one of the finest decorative
features of this building. The braces support a member resembling a purlin or a
tilted false plate, which in turn supports the porch rafters.

CONTINUE ON SEPARATE SHEET IF NECESSARY
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__THEATER
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__OTHER (SPECIFY)

SPECIFIC DATES

1898

BUILDER/ARGHITECT

STATEMENT

Beach.

OF SIGNIFICANCE

The Washington and Chesapeake Railway Company received a charter from the
State of Maryland on September 1, 1891 to operate a standard gauge railroad
from the Eastern boundary of the District of Columbia through Prince Georges,
Anne Arundel and Calvert Counties to the site of the present town of Chesapeake

president.
When a design was needed for the station, McNeil, Mears' assistant, wrote
to C.S. Thompson, the bridge engineer for the Denver and Rio Grande, requesting

copies of the depot plans at Fort Logan.
ulated is uncertain, but it is apparent that a "type" was employed, for the

It ran from Fall 1898 into Spring 1935.

Otto Mears was the company

The extent to which these plans were em-

photographs of the stations at Owings, Marlboro, and Washington reveal
similarities among these depots.
The Chesapeake Beach terminal was built partially upon reclaimed marshland

along the south side of Fishing Creek.

In terms of materials and style it

shares a great deal with the other houses and structures closely connected with

the original park and town.

contractor and builder of most of those buildings.
The significance of the Chesapeake Beach Railway Company to the history of
Calvert County is simply that for many years neither Chesapeake Beach nor the

Railroad would have existed without the support of the other.

It was likely the work of Winston, who was the

While the resort

at Chesapeake Beach was the reason for the existence of the railroad, the rail-
road also provided the only reliable freight and transportation line for the
northern half of Calvert County.
It is ironic that the railroad transported the first automobiles into
Calvert County, for it was the automobile which eventually caused the railroad

to go out of business.

CONTINUE ON SEPARATE SHEET IF NECESSARY
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SAMAJOR BIBLIOGRAPHICAL REFERENCES

The Chesapeake Beach Railway, Ames W. Williams (1977)

Wayne Nield, Maryland Historical Trust Historic Sites Invento
Planning brochure, Chesapeake Beach Railroad Museum
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DESCRIPTION CONTINUED

"DELORES"

This car is one of 32 passenger coaches purchased between June 1, 1899,
and December 1, 1903, from the St. Charles Car Company of St. Charles, Missouri.
The Calvert County Historical Society moved the car from the Chesapeake Beach
Railroad Engine House in Prince George's County to the Chesapeake Beach Rail-
road Station in spring, 1979. The car stands about 50' west of the Station.

The Delores was abandoned in 1958, then stripped and cut in half in
1959, Little original detail remains, although the basic structure of the
car is intact. Ames Williams, in Otto Mears Goes East: The Chesapeake Beach
Railway (p. 40, 48), describes the original cars as:

all of wooden construction of the suburban type with open
platforms, four-wheel trucks, toilets, baggage racks,

kerosene lighting and steam heat., The livery was Tuscan

red with black trimmings and trucks. The letter boards .
carved the words Chesapeake Beach in gold leaf. While there

is no record of the individual weight of each class of car,

they appear to have ranged between 52,450 and 58,500 pounds.

The coaches contained 40 rattan swing-over seats, the chair cars
72 wicker chairs and the parlor cars 36 plush and 36 wicker
seats each.




i
}

o S o s ay T

‘Delores Arrives At Ch

By Ellen Gauthier
Staff Writer

Delores arrived in Chesa-
peake Beach under the cover
of darkness blanketed by rain
that had been falling all day
and all night. A few people
remembered her from past
days when she glided into
town on a silver rail wearing
fresh paint and carrying peo-
ple from Washington and the
surrounding area to this little
resort town in northern Cal-
vert County.

Delores is one of the last
known passenger cars from
the now defunct Chesapeake
Beach Railway and her final
trip into Chesapeake Beach
last week heralds the begin-
ning of a new era in the little
town that was created by a
railroad.

Since the railroad stopped
operation in 1935, Delores
had been sitting in a railyard
in Seat Pleasant serving as a
home for transients and
hobos.

Today she sits in the park-
ing lot of the Rod ‘n’ Reel
Restaurant in Chesapeake
Beach. Delores has come
home looking a little the
worse for wear. Some of the
windows are -boarded up,
others are open and let the
rain in, the roof leaks, the

paint is peelingr————.

But underneath this dere-
lict facade glimpses can be
seen of what Delores was. To
the people of Chesapeake
Beach, the Calvert Historical
Society and to Fred and Ger-
ald Donovan (owners of the
Rod ‘n’ Reel), these glimpses

ent = ; e Bl e SR ey
The passenger car, Delores, the last known sarviving car from the old
Chesapeake Beach Railway, arrived for restoration at the Rod ‘n’ Reel Restaurant last
week. (staff photo by Ellen Gauthier) '

peakeBeach

of the past work like a mirror
on the future.

The Delores, if all goes
well, is destined to become
one of the chief exhibits at
the proposed Chesapeake
Beach Raiiroad Museum.
The museum is still in the
planning stages, spurred
along by tremendous out-
pourings of enthusiasm from
residents all over the county.
_-The Washington and
Chesapeake Railway Com-
pany received a charter from
the state 1 1891 to-operate a
standard gauge railroad from
the eastern boundary of
Washington through Prince
George's, Anne Arundel and
Calvert counties to the site of
the present town of Chesa-
peake Beach.

(See Delores Pg. 21)
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Chesapeake Beach Railway Station (CT-100) Built 1898
8005 Bayside Road, Chesapeake Beach

Calvert County, Maryland
-Open to the public

The Chesapeake Beach Railway Museum building is owned by the Rod-n-Reel, Inc. In
1978 the Rod-n-Reel, Inc. purchased the former railroad station and 5.96 acres of
contiguous land from the Chesapeake Beach Park In an interest to preserve the defunct
railroad station, the owners of the Rod-n-Reel, Inc. leased the building to the Calvert
County Commissioners in 1979. Through the combined efforts of the Calvert County
Historical Society, Calvert County Government and private individuals local landmark
was successfully converted into a museum dedicated to the history of the Chesapeake
Beach Railroad and the community it created.

In 1980 the building was listed on the National Register of Historic Places, and the
following year the building’s owners granted a preservation easement (interior and
exterior) to the Maryland Historical Trust (MHT). Between 1980 and 1984, with financial
assistance from the National Park Service (NPS), MHT, and local support, the building
underwent a thorough interior and exterior restoration. |n accordance with the terms of
the easement, restoration was carried out in consultation with MHT and in compliance
with the Secretary of the Interior's Standards for the Treatment of Historic Properties.

The 1980s restoration effort focused on reversing major integrity-diminishing structural
changes and deterioration that took place between 1935 and 1979. Repairs were made
to surviving original features; missing architectural elements were suitably replaced; and
mechanical systems were installed and/or upgraded. Some documentation and in-
progress photographs related to the restoration are in the files of the Chesapeake Beach
Railway Museum. Slide reproductions are included in the photographic documentation
section of this update. Scanned copies of these slides are included here on attached
continuation sheets.

In compliance with a 1999 agreement between the Rod-n-Reel, Inc. and the Maryland
Historical Trust, the following documentation focuses on the changes that have taken

place since the writing of the nomination in 1979.




Survey No. CT-100

Maryland Historical Trust Magi No.

State Historic Sites Inventory Form DOE x yes no

—_— (NR listed, 1980)
Easemen €

1. Name (indicate preferred name)

historic Chesapeake Beach Railway Station (preferred)

and/or common Chesapeake Beach Railway Station Museum

2. Location

street & number 8005 Bayside Road P.O Box 783 ____not for publication

city, town Chesapeake Beach vicinity of congressional district 1st

state Maryland county Calvert

3. Classification

Category Ownership Status Present Use
district public X occupied agriculture X museum

x building(s) private unoccupied commercial park

structure X both work in progress educational private residence
site Public Acquisition Accessible entertainment religious
object in process yes: restricted government scientific

— being considered X yes: unrestricted industrial transportation

not applicable no military other:

4. Owner of Property (give names and mailing addresses of all owners)

name Rod-n-Reel, Inc. c/o Gerald W. Donovan

street & number P.O. Box 99 telephone no.: _(410) 257-2735

city, town Chesapeake Beach state and zip code: Maryland 20732

5. Location of Legal Description

courthouse, registry of deeds, etc. Calvert County Court House liber ABE 235
street & number folio 885
city, town Prince Frederick state Maryland

6. Representation in Existing Historical Surveys

title National register of Historic Places Inventory—Nomination Form
date 1979 x federal _ state ___county __local
e—sitory for survey records Maryland Historical Trust

city, town Crownsville state Maryland
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Condition
X excellent

7. Description Survey No.
Check one Check one
deteriorated unaltered x original site
ruins x altered moved date of move

_ 7 good
fair

unexposed

Prepare both a summary paragraph and a general description of the resource and its various elements as it exists today.

Exterior

This north-facing building is composed of two telescoping sections, aligned along
an east-west axis. The western-most portion, measuring 93’ in length and
extending one-and-a-half stories in height, represents the main body of the
structure. The shorter, one-story section that extends to the west, originally
served as an open-air passenger-waiting pavilion.

Between 1935 and 1950 the open-air waiting pavilion was enclosed with
concrete block walls that were externally sheathed with asphalt siding. These
walls are now removed and the pavilion is once again restored, and gives a
commanding view of the Chesapeake Bay, located directly to the east. The
pavilion’s original roof truss and post, structural support system, entombed by the
later construction, are once again exposed.

The pavilion features a pressure-treated pine platform that continues westward to
wrap around the buiiding’s north and east perimeter. Those portions are
sheltered from the elements by the overhanging eaves of the main building. Both
the platform and the two low steps that connect the platform with grade level
were rebuilt as part of the 1980s restoration campaign.

Also during the course of the building’s history, the original cedar-shingle roof
was replaced with black, modern composition shingles. The fish-scale shingle-
covered walls of the building’s architectural focal point -- the pyramidal-roof tower
centered on the front of building’s main mass -- were sided with yellow asbestos
shingles. The distinctive “kick” located at the tower’s base, was removed.

During restoration, cedar roof shingles were reinstalled. With respect to the
tower, historically correct decorative fish-scale shingles replaced the
inappropriate asbestos sheathing, and the “kick” reconstructed.

A corbelled chimney pierces the roofline in the building’s southeast quadrant.
Extensive repairs and repointing were carried out to both the exposed and
internal portions of the stack.

The exterior walls of the main building were constructed with the upper section
sheathed with German siding. Below the windows, separated from the German
siding by a wooden surbase, vertical wainscoting was originally employed. The
German siding survives to present, but the wainscoting was subsequently
removed. It was, however, replaced as part of the restoration program.




8. Significance Survey No. CT-100

Period Areas of Significance—Check and justify below
prehistoric _ archeology-prehistoric community planning ___landscape architecture ____religion
_7_1400-1499 __ archeology-historic conservation _ law _____science
1500-1599 agriculture economics ____literature ____sculpture
1600-1699 _ x__architecture education ____ military _____social/
1700-1799 art engineering _____music humanitarian
1800-1899 _ commerce exploration/settiement __ philosophy ____theater
x 1900- communications industry ____ politics/government ~_ x__transportation
T invention _x_other
- (recreation)
Specific dates: 1898 Builder/Architect
Check: Applicable Criteria: X A B x C D
and/or
Applicable Exception: A B C D E F G
Level of Significance: X__national _ x_state _X_ local

Prepare both a summary paragraph of significance and a general statement of history and support.

Built in 1898, the Chesapeake Beach Railroad Station is a fine and typical
example of late-19th / early-20th century railroad architecture. The relatively
modest and inexpensive construction methods used in this building likely reflect
the financial constraints of its financiers.

The Chesapeake Beach Railway Company and the Chesapeake Beach Hotel
Company were the financially troubled corporate entities that buitt the railroad,
and developed Chesapeake Beach into a bayside resort. Many of the principals
of one company were involved with the other. Most notable, was Colorado native
Otto Mears, who made a fortune in the railroad business in the western United
States. The most thorough history of the subject remains Ames Williams', Otto
Mears Goes East:. The Chesapeake Beach Railway.

Photographs of the bustling resort, complete with boardwalk, amusement park
and casinos, suggest a level of financial success that, in fact, never existed. The
Chesapeake Beach Railroad, begun in 1898, ceased operation in 1935. The
resort suffered the vicissitudes of the Great Depression, World War Il, and the
popularity of ocean-side resorts. Subsequent to World War II, both Chesapeake
Beach and its neighbor, North Beach transformed from summer resorts to year-
round residential communities.

Touted as “New and Modern” and as presenting “attractions not offered by any
other resort this side of Atlantic City”, the railroad provided Washingtonians with
easy access to this summer community. Rail travel from Baltimore required
numerous transfers. As a result, most Baltimoreans arrived to Chesapeake
Beach via steamship.

The Chesapeake Beach Railroad Station’s architect remains unclear. A Mr.
McNeil, an assistant to Otto Mears, wrote to C.S. Thompson, bridge engineer for
the Denver and Rio Grande Railroad requesting copies of depot plans at Ft.




9. Major Bibliographical References Survey No CT-100

1. Site files at Chesapeake Beach Railway Museum, Chesapeake Beach, Maryland

2. National Register of Historic Places Inventory--nomination form., 1979. Prepared by Merry Stinson, on file at

the Maryland Historical Trust.

3__North Beach, Maryland: A Determination of Eligibility, 1998. Prepared by Sherri Marsh for Calvert County Historic
2rvation Commission.

4. Land Records of Calvert County. Calvert County Courthouse, Prince Frederick, MD.

10. Geographical Data

Acreage of nominated property see note below

Quadrangle name North Beach Quadrangle scale 1: 24,000

UTM References Do NOT complete UTM references
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Verbal boundary description and justification
The property owner and the Maryland Historical Trust are currently negotiating a new easement boundary for the property.

List all states and counties for properties overlapping state or county boundaries

—

N code county code

state code county code

11. Form Prepared by

nametftitle Sherri M. Marsh

_organization Retrospect Cultural Resource Services date 3/17/2000

street & number 1106 Bay Ridge Avenue

city or town Annapolis state Maryland 21403

The Maryland Historic Sites Inventory was officially created by
an Act of the Maryland Legislature to be found in the Annotated
Code of Maryland, Article 41, Section 181 KA, 1974 supplement.

The survey and inventory are being prepared for information and
record purposes only and do not constitute any infringement of
individual property rights.

return to: Maryland Historical Trust
DHCP/DHCD
—_ 100 Community Place
Crownsville, MD 21032-2023
410-514-7600

PS-2746




Continuation Sheet Survey No. CT-100

(Continuation Sheet 7.1)

With respect to fenestration, the building’s distinctive 20/1 and 20/2 and 10/10
double hung sash windows are original. Frames and sash were repaired,
generations of paint removed, and broken panes replaced. The heavy exterior
glazed-and-paneled oak doors located in the building’s north, south and east
walls are also original. Their painted-over transom lights have been repaired.

The primacy of the building’s front (north) entrance is emphasized by the
presence of a well-articulated dentilated lintel between the single-light transom
and door. Two openings on the north side are similar to that found in the north
wall, except for the dentilated trim. The building’s west entrance leads into the
baggage room. This large utilitarian service entrance retains its heavy, diagonal-
batten-and-brace wooden door, hung on a metal sliding track. Paint has been
removed and glazing repaired to the opening'’s five-light transom.

Interior

Interior restoration was carried out in a manner that retained the maximum
amount of original material. The project’s goal was to return the building as
close as possible to its turn-of-the century appearance. Two areas of the
building, however, the former baggage room and attic, were changed from the
original design to accommodate present-day needs.

The building, measuring approximately 93’ x 25, is divided into three rooms of
differing size. The modified, L-shaped waiting room composes the majority of the
building’s interior space. It is currently used to display museum collections and
educational signage. A small office, measuring approximately 12’ x 12’ is located
on the structure’s south side. It too is used as display space. A corridor, formed
by the long end of the waiting room’s “L” runs in front of the office, and connects
with the baggage room situated at the structure’s west end.

The building’s interior features regular-width, tongue-in-groove pine flooring
throughout. Though it had buckled in placed, the original floor was retained.
Boards were removed, repairs made, roll-type fiberglass insulation laid, the floor
leveled and braced, and the floorboards then replaced. The reinstalled floor was
subsequently sanded and stained.

The walls and ceiling of the waiting room and office are finished with modern
gypsum board. Blown-in wool insulation has been pumped behind the walls,
while roll-type insulation installed in the ceiling. While the walls are new, the
beaded board wainscoting found in the waiting room and office is original to the
structure. Numerous coats of paint had been applied over the years. Rather
than strip the paint, it was decided to reverse the wainscot so that the surface
that had spent the better part of a century abutting the wall now presented a




Continuation Sheet Survey No. CT-100

(Continuation Sheet 7.2)

pristine surface into the room. The chair rail, however, was missing. Its modern
replacement is “Brooks’ Fancy Chair Rail” purchased from Brooks Brothers
Lumber of Annapolis.

Most window and door surrounds are original. Exceptions include the door and
surrounds associated with the door to the office and that between the waiting
room and baggage room. While the replacement material closely matches
original fabric, the wood grain and patina differentiates the historic from the
modern elements.

In deference to fuel efficiency, new interior storm windows were fabricated and
installed as part of the restoration. Carefully crafted from yellow pine and stained
to match historic woodwork, these storm windows feature a horizontal muntin
that aligns with the meeting rail of the outer window. As a result, these energy-
conserving windows are well camouflaged and difficult to detect.

The small alcove directly in front of the office was altered during the course of the
building’s occupation. Specifically, the segmental arch spanning the north wall's
double windows was enclosed. It has now been reconstructed based upon
physical and photographic evidence.

The baggage room is the most altered of the original historic spaces. On the
room’s east wall, the original staircase leading to the attic has been removed.
The stair’s former location is reveled by ghosting on the tongue-in-groove
horizontal planks that sheath the finish the east wall. A new staircase, enclosed
behind a beaded board wall, now runs along the room’s south wall. A small
closet is located beneath the stair and is used to store files and safety
equipment.

Reused boards laid horizontally cover the lower two-thirds of the baggage room’s
north and south walls. The upper portions remain unsheathed and the original 2”
x 4” studs with interstices filled with roll-type fiberglass insulation are visible.

The final treatment and schedule for finishing these walls remains undermined.

Originally, the attic level was unfinished. While the exposed ceiling joists, visible
in the baggage room, are original to the structure, the attic’s floorboards (i.e.
baggage room ceiling) are reused material, and were installed to avoid a modern
appearance when viewed from the baggage room.

Behind the baggage room’s new beaded board south wall, lies a quarter-turn
staircase. This provides access to the recently finished attic. Material from the
old stair was incorporated into the new.




Continuation Sheet Survey No. CT-100

(Continuation Sheet 7.3)

Originally the attic was unfinished, and lacked even a secure floor. This space
contains an office, bathroom and a small storage area. As previously noted, old
flooring is installed over the baggage room, otherwise the attic is finished with
modern materials. In keeping with guidelines set form by the Secretary of the
Interior’s Standards for the Treatment of Historic Properties, the attic was
finished to reflect its 1980s date of construction.

Contributing Resources

The railroad passenger car “Delores” sits on the small segment of track behind
the station. Although the car is associated with the Chesapeake Beach Railway,
it was included as a contributing resource in the 1979 nomination, but was not
included in the final listing due to loss of integrity.

Subsequent to the 1979 nomination, the Delores was restored. Given the
general loss of historic environmental setting, and the restored condition of the
Delores, the car warrants recognition as a contributing element to the
Chesapeake Beach Railway Museum.




Continuation Sheet Survey No. CT-100

(Continuation Sheet 8.1)

Logan. If these plans were used is not known. The station, however, is typical of
the period and resembles stations built at this time both in various parts of
Maryland and throughout the country.

When examined in a broader context, it is apparent that the Chesapeake Beach
resort, and concomitantly its railroad, were products of powerful economic and
social trends inspired by the Industrial Revolution. The Industrial Revolution
created an immense middle class. The new economy inspired a major
demographic change, as thousands of rural workers migrated to the cities in
search of factory jobs. At the same time European immigration was at a zenith.

The Industrial Revolution’s metaphorical backbone was the railroad, which
allowed for the efficient transportation of raw materials and distribution of finished
goods. Railroads also allowed the nation’s consumers to travel.

The years following the American Civil War created a population of previously
unparalleled in wealth and mobility. At the same time urban crowding and
increased pollution exacerbated age-old unpleasantness associated with city life.

Wealth and mobility gave rise to the resort. Scores of recreational, therapeutic,
spiritual, artistic and educational retreats sprang up throughout the country in the
19" century. Chesapeake Beach is a classic example of this trend. Designed to
appeal to a turn-of-the-20™ century middie class sensibility, Chesapeake Beach
is a product of the same socio-economic conditions that enabled Newport, Rhode
Island; Chautaugua, New York; Hot Springs, Arkansas; Jekyll Island, Georgia;
Atlantic City, New Jersey; or more locally, Ocean City, Maryland.

Ocean City is the most famous of Maryland’s surviving summer resorts. Dozens
of others, however, languished and fell into obscurity. Nearly forgotten are the
Maryland summer communities of Bay Ridge, Beterton, Brown’s Grove, Colonial
Beach,. Fair Haven, Fairview Beach, Gibson island, Marshall Hall, Notley Hall,
Piney Point, Rockaway Beach, Sandy Point, Sherwood Forest, Tivoli and
Tolchester.

Socio-economic circumstance enabled the rise of the resort, and those same
circumstances ushered in their decline. In 1918, Prohibition made the
manufacture or sale of alcoholic beverage illegal (Chesapeake Beach banned
these activities in 1914). The Great Depression of the 1930s, World War I, and
locally, a devastating hurricane in 1933 undermined the viability of recreation
oriented communities dependent upon disposable income and disposable time.
The wide availability and affordability of the automobile also played an important
role.

Initially, the automobile first proved deleterious to the railroad. It is considered a
maijor factor in the ultimate demise of the Chesapeake Beach Railroad. Cars
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subsequently impacted local beach resorts as they, and the post-war highway
system, made ocean-side resorts easier to visit. Chesapeake Beach, like so
many other Maryland bayside resorts, transitioned into a principally year-round
residential community.

The Chesapeake Beach Railway Station recalls an era when the train, not the
automobile was the primary mode of transportation, and when the Chesapeake
Bay supported dozens of summer resorts for urban-weary residents.

The Chesapeake Beach Railway Station is significant both as an important
example of typical late-19" / early-20" century railroad architecture, but important
national cultural and social trends related to transportation and recreation.
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Addenda

The Chesapeake Beach Railway Museum building is owned by the Rod-n-Reel,
Inc. In 1978 the Rod-n-Reel, Inc. purchased the former railroad station and 5.96
acres of contiguous land from the Chesapeake Beach Park (Calvert County Land
Records Liber ABE 235 Folio 524). In an interest to preserve the defunct railroad
station, the owners of the Rod-n-Reel, Inc. leased the building to the Calvert
County Commissioners in 1979. Through the combined efforts of the Calvert
County Historical Society, Calvert County Government and private individuals
local landmark was successfully converted into a museum dedicated to the
history of the Chesapeake Beach Railroad and the community it created.

In 1980 the building was listed on the National Register of Historic Places, and
the following year the building’s owners granted a preservation easement
(interior and exterior) to the Maryland Historical Trust (MHT). Between 1980 and
1984, with financial assistance from the National Park Service (NPS), MHT, and
local support, the building underwent a thorough interior and exterior restoration.
In accordance with the terms of the easement, restoration was carried out in
consultation with MHT and in accordance with the Secretary of the Interior’s
Standards for the Treatment of Historic Properties.

Restoration architect for the project was Robert B. Loveless of Associated
Architects, a firm based in Manassas, Virginia. Exterior and interior work was
carried out under the direction of Charles Loving & Son, and Roger O’Dell,
respectively.

The 1980s restoration effort focused on reversing major integrity-diminishing
structural changes and deterioration that took place between 1935 and 1979.
Repairs were made to surviving original features; missing architectural elements
were suitably replaced; and mechanical systems were installed and/or upgraded.
Some documentation and in-progress photographs related to the restoration are
in the files of the Chesapeake Beach Railway Museum. Slide reproductions are
included in the photographic documentation section of this update. Scanned
copies of these slides are included here on attached continuation sheets.

The 1898 railroad station is in excellent condition, following its complete
restoration. The building’s pre-restoration condition is described in Section 7 of
the National Register of Historic Places Nomination Form/ Maryland Historical
Trust Inventory Form prepared in 1979. The following description, in compliance
with an agreement between the building’s owners and the Maryland Historical
Trust, focuses on the changes that have taken place since the writing of the
nomination in 1979.
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CT-100 Built
Chesapeake Beach Railway 1898
8005 Bayside Road, Chesapeake Beach, Maryland

Privately owned, leased to Calvert County Commissioners

open to the public

MARYLAND COMPREHENSIVE STATE HISTORIC PRESERVATION PLAN
STATEWIDE HISTORIC CONTEXTS

I. Geographic Organization: Western Shore
II. Chronological/Development Periods: Industrial/Urban Dominance (1870-193 0)
II1. Prehistoric Period Themes: N/A

IV.  Historic Period Themes: Architecture
Economic
Social
Transportation

V. Resource Type
Category: Building
Historic Environment: village
Historic Function(s) and Use(s): railway station (historic) / museum (current)
Known Design Source: Unknown. (Attributed to a design provided by the Denver and
Rio Grande Railroad.)
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Chesapeake Beach Railway Station, circal 1900-1910.
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Chesapeake Beach Railway Station in the 1920s.
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Arriving at Chesapeake Beach, circa 1925.



Continuation Sheet Survey No. CT-100

?hotographs taken during the restoration of the Chesapeake Beach Railway Station in the early 1980s. Date and
photographer unknown. Originals are in the collection of the Chesapeake Beach Railway Museum.

—
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Photographs taken during the restoration of the Chesapeake Beach Railway Station in the early 1980s. Date and
photographer unknown. Originals are in the collection of the Chesapeake Beach Railway Museum.

Chesapeake Beach Railraod Station, circa 1980, prior to restoration.

Above and Below:

p—
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Photographs taken during the restoration of the Chesapeake Beach I-Railway Station in the early 1980s. Date and
photographer unknown. Originals are in the collection of the Chesapeake Beach Railway Museum.

Above: east view showing the demolition of added concrete wall around passenger pavilion.

—
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Photographs taken during the restoration of the Chesapeake Beach I-Railway Station in the early 1980s. Date and
photographer unknown. Originals are in the collection of the Chesapeake Beach Railway Museum.

a—

Above: Interior of passenger pavilion, during demolition of concrete block wall.



Continuation Sheet Survey No. CT-100

Photographs taken during the restoration of the Chesapeake Beach E{ailway Station in the early 1980s. Date and
photographer unknown. Originals are in the collection of the Chesapeake Beach Railway Museum.

Above and Below: Removal of concrete block wall from passenger pavilion.

po—
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Photographs taken during the restoration of the Chesapeake Beach Railway Station in the early 1980s. Date and
photographer unknown. Originals are in the collection of the Chesapeake Beach Railway Museum.

—
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. Date and

Photographs taken during the restoration of the Chesapeake Beach Railway Station in the early 1980s
photographer unknown. Originals are in the collection of the Chesapeake Beach Railway Museum.

Above: North-side tower showing replaced exterior wainscot, and fish scale shingles on tower.
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Photographs taken during the restoration of the Chesapeak?lBeach Railway Station in the early 1980s. Date and
photographer unknown. Originals are in the collection of the Chesapeake Beach Railway Museum.
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Continuation Sheet
Photographs taken during the restoration of the Chesapeake Beach Railway Station in the early 1980s. Date and
photographer unknown. Originals are in the collection of the Chesapeake Beach Railway Museum.

Above: Repairs to exteiror and foundation.
Ralow: Installation of new roof.
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-Pﬁhotographs taken during the restoration of the Chesapeake Beach ﬁailway Station in the early 1980s. Date and
photographer unknown. Originals are in the collection of the Chesapeake Beach Railway Museum.
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Above: Repairs to chimney
Balow: Overview of restoration in progress.
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Photographs taken during the restoration of the Chesapeake Beach Railway Station in the early 1980s. Date and
photographer unknown. Originals are in the collection of the Chesapeake Beach Railway Museum.

e

Above: Restoring dentilated trim over north entrance.

—
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Photographs taken during the restoration of the Chesapeake Beach Railway Station in the early 1980s. Date and
photographer unknown. Originals are in the collection of the Chesapeake Beach Railway Museum.

Above: Exterior restoration in progress.
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Photographs taken during the restoration of the Chesapeake Beach Railway Station in the early 1980s. Date and
photographer unknown. Originals are in the collection of the Chesapeake Beach Railway Museum.

Above: Initiating work on west-side cargo entrance.
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Chesapeake Beach Railroad Station in Owing, Maryland, 1920s. Note similarity to Chesapeake Station.




Chesapeake Beach Railway Station Museum (CT-100)
1* floor plan and exterior and 1% floor photograph location map.

Numbers shown on plan correspond with numbering system on black and white photographs
submitted to the Maryland Historical Trust, June 2000.
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